[bookmark: _GoBack]Mickleham Parish Magazine - May 1991

MICKLEHAM PAST AND PRESENT:  LEWIS BRIDGER - EVERY INCH A GARDENER
Lewis Bridger, although not born in Mickleham, has lived here since the late 1920s.  Nowadays he is perhaps less of a familiar figure in the village than some of the other people whom have been subjects of this small series, but his long life as a gardener portrays something of what life was like in Mickleham some sixty years ago.
Lewis was born in Merrow, where his father owned a small business, and educated at Archbishop Abbott Secondary School, proving himself a very bright pupil.  He was, however, considered delicate, a fact scarcely borne out by the present active 86-year-old.  From an early age he hankered after the outdoor life (his grandfather had been a gardener), and a traveller for a seed merchant appears to have steered the lad into gardening.  He subsequently followed the usual progression of those days from gardener’s boy to under-gardener, and so on, working in several of the large houses and gardens of mid-Surrey.  Before marrying he lived with other young gardeners in what was known as a ‘bothy’ but about 1929 he married and set up home in Dorking’s Glory Woods.  In 1930 Lewis became truly involved with Mickleham when he went to work for Captain and Mrs Fosbery of Dalewood, now Box Hill School, and was given the gardener’s cottage by Swanworth level crossing, where he and his wife still live. There was then, of course, no road separating the cottage from Dalewood, though it was a fairly neglected part of the village and without electricity.  It may be of interest that Mrs Bridger, having had an electric iron and found it wanting, prefers to use her old flat irons, which she heats on an electric stove! The dual carriageway was opened only shortly before the second world and formerly cows grazed on what are now the playing fields of the school.  The cowsheds were what is today Hall Farm, and the flats alongside in the lane were built on the site of the original milking parlour.  These, however, belonged to the Gordon Clarks of Mickleham Hall and not to the Fosberys.
During the first world war Lewis did not join the army because of his incipient deafness but became a member of the Fire Service, which he chose in preference to factory work.  He did not operate, however, from the local station next to the shop (recently rebuilt and re-named Bell Cottage) but was directed to Guildford.  There he worked on a shift basis, an arrangement which enabled him to return to Dalewood when not on duty, to tend the lawns and greenhouses which were his special concern and delight.  During his enforced absences the cowman of Dalewood, Mr Bartlett, who lived at Mole Cottage, almost next door to the Bridgers, would carry out essential gardening tasks.  Doubtless Mrs Bridger also helped out when she was not in demand for various household chores in Dalewood.
Almost total deafness now prevents Lewis from participating in village life but he still remains active (if a little slower and stiffer than formerly) and his garden retains that professional touch, as well as being productive and pleasurable to the Bridgers themselves.
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